
ARIZONA STATE SENATE 
46TH LEGISLATURE 

SECOND REGULAR SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 
FINANCE 

 
DATE:  January 26, 2004 TIME:   1:30 p.m. ROOM: SHR 1 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Martin VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Harper 

  
ANALYST: Denisse Gee COMMITTEE  

SECRETARY:   
Nancy L. DeMichele 

 
INTERN: Colin McArthur 

Michelle Yang 
 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator Brown X   SB 1037 DPA/SE 
Senator Burns X   SB 1048 HELD 
Senator Cheuvront X   SB 1074 DPA 
Senator Garcia X   SB 1082 DP 
Senator Jarrett X   SB 1141 DP 
Senator Leff X     
Senator Weiers X     
Senator Harper, Vice Chairman X     
Senator Martin, Chairman X     
 
 

GOVERNOR’S APPOINTMENTS  
 

 
Name Position Recommendation 

   
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Committee on Finance 

 2  January 26, 2004 

 
Senator Martin called the meeting to order at 1:50 p.m., and roll call was taken.  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Chairman Martin moved the minutes of January 19, 2004 be approved.   Without 
objection, the minutes were approved as distributed. 

 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
Senator Martin announced that testimony on SB 1074 and SB 1082 would be combined. 
 
SB 1048 – widows; property tax exemption – HELD 
 
Senator Martin announced that SB 1048 would be held. 
 
SB 1141 – sales tax increase; preexisting transactions – DO PASS 
 
Denisse Gee, Finance Committee Analyst, explained SB 1141. 
 
Tom Dorn, East Valley Chambers of Commerce Alliance, testified in support of SB 1141. 
 
Tony Hyland, Gilbert Chamber of Commerce, testified in support of SB 1141. 
 
Don Cavanagh, Director, Arizona Builders Alliance, testified in support of SB 1141. 
 
Senator Martin announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Harper moved SB 1141 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 1). 

 
SB 1037 – technical correction; uniform trust code – DO PASS AMENDED/STRIKE 
EVERYTHING 
 
Denisse Gee, Finance Committee Analyst, explained the 2-page Jarrett strike-everything 
amendment dated 1/20/04 at 5:35 p.m. 
 
Senator Jarrett, bill sponsor, explained she is working with Representative Boone on SB 1037. 
 
Evelyn Ensminger, representing herself, testified in support of SB 1037. 
 
Susan K. Smith, Attorney, representing herself, testified in support of SB 1037. 
 
Christine Thompson, Director of Government Affairs, State Bar of Arizona, testified in opposition 
to SB 1037. 
 
Justin Warner, Investment Representative and Certified Financial Planner, Edward Jones 
Investments, representing himself, testified in support of SB 1037.  
 
Max Boyer, Estate Planning Attorney, representing himself, testified in support of SB 1037. 



  Committee on Finance 

 3  January 26, 2004 

 
 
John Vryhof, Estate Planning Attorney, Snell and Wilmer, representing himself, testified in 
support of SB 1037. 
 
Tanya Miller, Attorney, Steptoe and Johnson, representing Arizona Bankers Association, 
testified in support of SB 1037. 
 
Roger Curley, Probate Trust Law Section of the State Bar of Arizona, testified in opposition to SB 
1037. 
 
Senator Martin announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment A). 
 

Senator Harper moved SB 1037 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
 

Senator Jarrett moved the 2-page Jarrett strike-everything amendment dated 
1/20/04 at 5:35 p.m. be ADOPTED (Attachment B). The motion CARRIED by a 
voice vote. 
 
Senator Harper moved SB 1037 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 2). 

 
SB 1074 – transportation excise tax; election – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Victoria Regens, Research Staff Director, explained SB 1074 and SB 1082.  She distributed a 
handout entitled “Regional Transportation Plan” (Attachment C).  She explained the 4-line Leff 
amendment to SB 1074 dated 1/23/04 at 8:00 a.m. (Attachment D).  She explained the 26-line Burns 
amendment to SB 1074 dated 1/23/04 at 4:28 p.m. (Attachment E).  Ms. Regens explained the 26-
line Burns amendment to SB 1082 dated 1/23/04 at 4:18 p.m. (Attachment F).  She explained the 7-
page Martin amendment to SB 1082 dated 1/23/04 at 3:50 p.m. (Attachment G). 
 
Senator Blendu, District 12, bill sponsor SB 1074, explained SB 1074. 
 
Senator Verschoor, District 22, bill sponsor SB 1082, explained SB 1082. 
 
Senator Allen, District 8, testified and urged the Committee to take the bills to the floor for a vote. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 
Neil Giuliano, Mayor, City of Tempe, testified in support of SB 1074 and in opposition to SB 1082.  
He stated he also serves as the Chair of the Transportation Policy Committee of the Regional Council 
of Governments.  He urged the Committee to keep the plan together and let the voters decide on the 
plan as a region. 
 
Phil Gordon, Mayor, City of Phoenix, testified in support of SB 1074 and a balanced plan.   
 
Dennis Smith, Executive Director, Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG), responded to 
Senator Leff regarding the proposed location and route of the light rail system. 
 



  Committee on Finance 

 4  January 26, 2004 

Eric Anderson, Transportation Director, MAG, testified in support of SB 1074 and in opposition to 
SB 1082.  In response to Senator Martin, Mr. Anderson clarified the route of the light rail system. 
 
Tom Husband, representing himself, testified in opposition to SB 1074 and in support of SB 1082.   
 
Stephen Everly, representing himself, testified in opposition to SB 1074 and in support of SB 1082.   
 
Martin Shultz, Vice President, Pinnacle West Capital Corp/Arizona Public Service, testified in 
support of SB 1074 and in opposition to SB 1082.  He stated that in lieu of the testimony of the people 
that are present and because of the time constraints, he read a list of names of individuals who 
collectively support SB 1074 and the Burns amendment and are in opposition to SB 1082.   
 
Jack Swanson, General Manager and Chief Executive Officer, USAA, testified in support of SB 
1074.  He stated he is also a member of the Greater Phoenix Leadership Council and the Chairman 
of the Board of the Greater Phoenix Economic Council (GPEC).   
 
Mary Hartle-Smith, National Federation of the Blind of Arizona, provided a transcript of her 
testimony supporting SB 1074 and in opposition to SB 1082 (Attachment H).  She provided an 
additional handout (Attachment I). 
 
Senator Martin recessed the meeting at 5:17 p.m. at the request of the President and announced that 
the meeting would reconvene in approximately one hour. 
 
Senator Martin reconvened the meeting at 8:21 p.m.  He explained a meeting took place with 
stakeholders without a resolution.  He said he had indicated before the recess that Mr. Sellers would 
be given time to testify.  Upon the conclusion of Mr. Sellers’ testimony, Senator Martin said the 
meeting would recess until the following day. 
 
Dean Sellers, business owner representing himself, testified in support of SB 1082.   
 
Senator Martin recessed the meeting at 8:30 p.m. to approximately 2:30/3:00 p.m. Tuesday 
afternoon. 
 
Senator Martin reconvened the meeting on January 27, 2004 at 4:55 p.m. 
 
Blue Crowley, representing himself, testified in opposition to SB 1074.  He distributed a set of 
maps (Attachment J) and voiced his concerns. 
 
Senator Martin recessed the meeting at 5:00 p.m. until the adjournment of the January 28, 2004 
afternoon committees.  He announced there would not be any further testimony.  However, he said 
testimony would be heard on any new amendments that may be presented. 
 
Senator Martin reconvened the meeting on January 28, 2004 at 7:22 p.m.   
 
Victoria Regens, Research Staff Director, explained the 4-page Martin amendment #2 to SB 1074 
dated 1/28/04 at 6:30 p.m. (Attachment K). 
 
Senator Martin explained the Martin #2 amendment is the result of the work conducted on this issue 
and does not represent “everything to everyone.”  He commented that this effort is the result of many 
discussions within the past several days.  He thanked everyone for their participation and patience 



  Committee on Finance 

 5  January 26, 2004 

and believes this amendment represents the best situation and extent to which votes can be obtained 
and to which the transportation plan can continue. 
 

Senator Harper moved SB 1074 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
 

Senator Harper moved the 4-page Martin #2 amendment dated 1/28/04 at 6:30 p.m. 
be ADOPTED (Attachment K). The motion CARRIED by a voice vote. 

 
Senator Martin explained that the main provision in the Martin amendment is a change from a 
May election date to a November election date and also includes other provisions explained 
earlier by Ms. Regens. 

 
Senator Harper moved SB 1074 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS 
recommendation.  The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 8-1-0 (Attachment 3). 

 
Senator Harper moved SB 1082 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation.  
The motion CARRIED by a roll call vote of 9-0-0 (Attachment 4). 

 
Copies of written transcripts of prepared testimony and handouts from various individuals were 
submitted for the record (Attachments L, M, N, O, P, and Q). 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Nancy L. DeMichele 
Committee Secretary 
 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.) 
 
 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


